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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretelypresented component units, eachmajor find, and the aggregate remaining find information ofStorey
County, Nevada, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Storey County, Nevada
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statenznts are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statenrnts referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretelypresented component units,
each major firnd, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Storey County, Nevada, as of June 30, 2010, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 22, 2010, on our
consideration of the Storey County, Nevada internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certainprovisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 7 and 45 through
66, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquires of management regarding the methods ofmeasurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.



Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectiwly comprise the
Storey County, Nevada, basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor find financial statements
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
combining and individual nonmajor find financial statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the basic financial staten~nts taken as a whole.

David A. Pringle, CPA, LTD
October 22, 2010
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COUNTY OF STOREY, STATE OF NEVADA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of Storey County, State of Nevada, we offer readers of Storey County’s financial statements this
overview and analysis of Storey County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. We ask readers to consider the
information presented, together with additional information in our letter of transmittal, which can be found within this
document.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

• The assets of Storey County exceeded its liabilities by$26,829,141.
• The County’s unrestricted net assets increased $ 997,986.
• At June 30, 2010, the unreserved ifind balance for the general ffind was $3,541,096.
• Storey County’s bonded debt at June 30, 2010 was $1,094,160 which was $722,732 in revenue bonds of

the County’s Enterprise Funds and a Medium term (7 yr.) General obligationbond of $371,428.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to StoreyCounty’s basic financial statements. These
basic financial statements include (1) government-wide financial statements (2) find financial statements, and (3) notes
to the financial staten~nts. Other supplementary information is also available in this report.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide statements are designed to provide readers with a
broad overview of Storey County’s finances in a manner similar to private-sector business.

The Statement ofNet Assets is information on all of Storey County’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between
the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases in net assets may serve as an indicator to show if the financial
position of Storey County is improving or declining.

The Statement ofActivities notes information as to how the government’s net assets changed during the last fiscal year.
All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the event causing the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Revenues and expenses are reported for some items that result in cash flows in future periods, (e.g. earned,
unused vacation)

The Government-Wide Financial Statements distinguish functions of Storey County that are mainly supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues (government activities) from other functions that recover their costs through user fees
and charges. The governmental activities ofStorey Countyincluded general government, public safety, roads and streets,
judicial and, culture and recreation The business activities (enterprise funds) are the water and sewer.

The Government-wide financial statenrnts can be found in this report on pages 8 through 10.

Fund Financial Statements. Funds are groupings of related accounts and is used to maintain control over resources
segregated for specific activities or purpose. Storey County uses fhnd accounting to ensure compliance with state and
federal finance related requirements. The find types of Storey County are as follows: governmental; enterprise; and
fiduciary.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for the functions reported as governmental activities,
in the government-wide financial staten~nts. Unlike the Government-Wide Financial Statentnts, governmental Lund
statements focus on near term inflows of expendable resources and on balances of expendable resources at the end of
the fiscal year. This information helps with decisions as to near term financing needs.

The focus of governmental funds is narrower than the government-wide financial statements. It is useful to compare the
information for governmental finds with similar information for governmental activities in government-wide financial
statements. Readers will better understand the long-term impact of governments near-term financing decisions. The
governmental find Balance Sheet and governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in find
balances allow this comparison between governmental finds and activities.
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Storey County has twenty-two governmental funds. Financial information is stated separately in the governmental fund
Balance Sheet and in the governmental Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in fund balances, for the
general fund and three other funds considered major funds. Data from the other nineteen governmental funds are
combined. Individual fund data for non-major governmental funds are reported in combining statements in this report.

Storey County adopts an annual budget for all the above funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided
for all funds to show compliance with the budget.

The governmental funds financial staten~nts can be found in this report on pages 11 through 22.

Enterprise funds. Storey County operates two enterprise funds, Water and Sewer. These funds are reported as business
type activities, reported inthe government-wide financial staten~nts.

Enterprise funds are presented on pages 23 through 25.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for other entities. Fiduciary funds are not
reported in the government-wide financial statement as the resources do not support Storey County’s needs. The cash
basis of accounting is used for fiduciary funds.

Fiduciary fund financial statenrnts can be found in this report on page 26.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes in this report provide additional information necessary for a full
understanding ofthe informationprovided in the government-wide financial statements. The notes canbe found on pages
27 through 38.

Other information. The combining and individual fund statements and schedules for major governmental funds can
be found on page 11 of this report. This same information for non-major governmental funds can be found on pages
39 through 62 of this report.

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NET ASSETS

Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total

June3O,2010 June3O,2010 June3O,2010

Current and other Assets $16,493,388 $ 1,386,506 $ 17,879,894
Capital Assets 8,549,660 5.649,546 14.199,206

Total Assets $25,043,048 $7,036,052 $ 32.079.100

Long Term Liabilities
Outstanding $ 758,191 $ 693,125 $ 1,451,316

Current Liabilities 3,721,603 77.040 3,798,643

Total Liabilities $ 4,479,794 $ 770,165 $ 5.249.959

NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital
Assets, Net ofRelated Debt $ 8,171,001 $4,926,814 S 13,097,815

Unrestricted 12,392,253 1,339.073 13.731,326

Total Net Assets 20.563.254 $6,265,887 26,829.141
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total

June 30, 2010 June 30, 2010 June 30, 2010

REVENUES:
Program Revenues:

Charges For Services $1,995,660 $ 485,257 $2,480,917
Operating Grants and Contributions 1,082,301 1,082,301
Capital Grants and Contributions 12,963 12,963

General Revenues:
Taxes 12,697,577 12,696,577
Intergovernmental 2,853,013 2,853,013
Other 574.243 15,021 589,264

Total Revenues 19,202,794 513.241 19.716.035

EXPENSES:
General Government 4,943,721 4,943,721
Public Safety 9,364,344 9,364,344
Judicial 1,040,400 1,040,400
Health and Wel~re 266,784 266,784
Culture and Recreation 955,750 955,750
Community Support 607,475 607,475
Highways and Streets 918,082 918,082
Water and Sewer _________ 621.493 621.493

Total Expenses 18.096,556 621.493 18,718,049

Changes In Net Assets 1,106,238 (108,252) 997,986

Net Assets July 1,2009 19,457,016 6,374.139 25.831.155

Net Assets June 30, 2010 $20,563,254 $6,265,887 $26,829,141

5



COUNTY OF STOREY, STATE OF NEVADA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2010

Revenues in the General Fund were $11,736,992 which was $121,768 less than the amount budgeted. Actual revenue
exceeded budgeted amounts in all budget categories except taxes; Intergovernmental and miscellaneous. Actual
expenditures were $11,336,316 whichwas $2,076,406 less than appropriations for the year. Overall, the total ending hind
balance was $3,541,096 which is $2,377,520 more than budgeted. Of the $3,541,096 ending hind balances $ 0 was
designated as an opening hind balance on July 1, 2010 and $0 was reserved on July 1, 2010

PERCENT TOTALS - ALL FUNDS

65 % •
Taxes

2% •
Grant& Contdbutions

9% l~
Chaiqes foi SeM~ss

4% .
Interest and Other

20 %•
Intergovernmental

3% _
Utility Service

5% •
Judicial

5% a
Highways & Streets

5% ~
C:uEun e & Recreation

1% •
Health & Welfare

3% N
Community Support

51 % •
Public Safety

27% •
General Government
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COUNTY OF STOREY, STATE OF NEVADA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 20W

Business Type Activities. Business-type activities decreased Storey County’s net assets by $108,252. Depreciation
expense for the current fiscal year was $148,791.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds. As noted earlier, Storey County uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance related le~I requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of Storey County’s governmental ffinds is to provide information on near term inflows,
outflows, and balances of expendable resources. Such information is useffil in assessing Storey County’s financing
requirements. Inparticular, unreserved fimd balance mayserve as a useffil measure ofgovernment’s netresources available
for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

BudgetaryHighlights-Fiscajyearjune 30,2010. The budget statements refiecta comparison ofbudgetedrevenues and
expenditures to actual for the year ended June 30, 2010. The budget statements were prepared from the final budget as
filed with the Nevada Department of Taxation. Budget revenues and expenditures were adjusted for grants received in
excess of original amounts budgeted. Augmentations and line item transfers were made during the year as approved by
the Storey County Commissioners.

The General Fund revenues were less than expectations by $021,768), leaving a find balance of $3,541,096.

General Fund budget information can be found on pages 15 through 19.

Capital Assets. Storey County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of June
30, 2010 amounts to $14,199,206 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
buildings, and system, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, aixi bridges.

STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
CAPITAL ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2010

Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total

June 30, 2010 June 30, 2010 June 30, 2010

Land $ 280,259 $ 280,259
Constnctionin Process 597,109 597.109
Buildings and Improvements 5,339,281 5,339,281
Improvements other than Buildings 542,454 542,454
Machinery and Equipment 1,790,557 $ 208,099 1,998,656
Sewer and Water systems 5,441,447 5,441,447

Total $ 8,549,660 $ 5.649,546 $ 14,199,206

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Storey County, Nevada’s finances for all those
with an interest in the govenunent’s finances. Questions concerning any ofthe informationprovided in this report
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Storey County Comptroller, P.O. Box 493,
Virginia City, Nevada 89440, telephone number (775)847-1006, e-mail HGalla~ier®StoreyCounty.org

,_~cg ~‘allagher,
Comptroller
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2010

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL

ASSETS
Cash $ 15,647,726 $ 1,336,023 $ 16,983,749
Accounts receivables 528,331 50,147 578,478
Taxes receivable 315,422 315,422
Interest receivable 1,909 336 2,245

Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation
Land 280,259 280,259
Construction in Progress 597,109 597,109
Buildings and improvements 5,339,281 5,339,281
Improvements other than buildings 542.454 542,454
tltility system 5,441,447 5,441,447
Machinery and equipment 1,790,557 208,099 1,998,656

Total Assets $ 25,043,048 $ 7,036,052 $ 32,079,100

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 3,647,318 $ 47,433 $ 3,694,751
Non-current liabilities

Bonds payable - due within one year 74,286 29,607 103,893
- due in more than one year 297,142 693,125 990,267

Compensated absences - due in more than one year 82,390 82,390
Other non-current liabilities 378,659 378,659

Total Liabilities S 4,479,795 $ 770,165 $ 5,249,960

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets - net of related debt $ 8,171,001 $ 4,926,814 $ 13,097,815
Unrestricted 12,392,252 1,339,073 13,731,325

Total Net Assets $ 20,563,253 $ 6,265,887 $ 26,829,140

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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Page I of2

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Primary government:

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Judicial
Health and Welfare
Culture and recreation
Community support
Highways and streets

$ 4,943,722
9,364,344
1,040,400

266,784
955,750
607,475
918,082

PROGRAM REVENUES
OPERATING

GRANTS AND
CONTRIBUTIONS

$ 3,054
1,079,247

CHARGES
EXPENSES FOR SERVICES

CAPITAL
GRANTS AND

CONTRIBUTIONS

$ 1,488,164
406,906

7,393

Total Governmental Activities

Business type activities:
Water
Se’ver

Total Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Government

93,197

18,096,557 1,995,660 1,082,301 $ -0-

412,943 343,635
208,550 141.622

621,493 485,257

S 18,718,050 $ 2,480.917 $ 1,082,301 S -0-

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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Page 2 of 2

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

BUSINESS
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Primary government:

Governmental activities:
General government S (3,452,504) $ (3,452,504)
Public safety (7,878,191) (7,878,191)
Judicial (1.033,007) (1,033,007)
Health and Welfare (266,784) (266,784)
Culture and recreation (955,750) (955,750)
Community support (607,475) (607,475)
Highways and streets (824,885) (824,885)

Total Governmental Activities (15,018,596) (15,018,596)

Business type activities:
Water $ (69,308) (69,308)
Sewer (66,928) (66,928)

Total Business-Type Activities (136,236) (136,236)

Total Primary Government (15,018,596) (136,236) (15,154,832)

General revenues:
Property taxes 12,697,577 12,697,577
Various State Collected Pass-Through Revenues 2,853,013 2,853,013
Interest Earnings 26,307 3,021 29,328
Miscellaneous Revenue 547.936 12,000 559,936
Capital Contributions and Grants 0 12,963 12,963

Total General Revenues 16,124.833 27,984 16,152,817
Change in Net Assets 1,1 06,237 (108,252) 997,985

Net Assets - July 1,2009 19,457,016 6,374,139 25,831,155
Net Assets - June 30, 2010 $ 20,563,253 $ 6,265,887 $ 26,829,140

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
BALANCE SFIEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2010

OTHER TOTAL
ROAD FIRE TRI-PAYBACK GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL

GENERAL FUND FUND FUND FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS

Cash $ 6,003,405 $ 541,431 $ 315,530 $ 2,400,000 $ 6,387,360 $ 15,647,726
Accounts receivable 244,524 88,103 174.619 21,085 528,331
Taxesreceivable 222,435 57,626 35,361 315,422
Interest receivable 1,516 135 258 1,909

Total Assets $ 6,471,880 $ 629,669 $ 547,775 $ 2,400,000 $ 6,444,064 $ 16,493,388

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 257,501 $ 16,749 $ 83,281 $ 323,410 $ 680,941
Accruedexpenses 455,791 35,821 178,827 670,439
Deferredrevenue 2,217,492 40,057 38,389 2,295,938

Total Liabilities 2,930,784 52,570 302,165 361,799 3,647,318

FUND BALANCES
Uareserved reported in:

General fund 3,54t,096 3,541,096
Capital projects funds 2,052,659 2,052,659
Special revenue funds 577,099 245,610 $ 2,400,000 4,029,606 7,252,315

Total Fund Balances 3,541,096 577,099 245,610 2,400,000 6,082,265 12,846,070

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 6,471,880 $ 629,669 $ 547,775 $ 2,400,000 $ 6,444,064 $ 16,493,388

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2010

Total Fund Balance - government finds - page 11 $12,846,070

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets irt of related depreciationare not
reported in the Governmental Funds financial
statements because they are not current financial
resources, but they are reported in the statement
of net assets 8,549,660

Long term liabilities are itt due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in
the finds. (832,477)

Total Net Assets - governmental activities -page 8 $20.563,253

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY. NEVADA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

OTHER TOTAL
ROAD FIRE TRI-PAYBACK GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL

GENERAL FUND FUND FUND FUNDS FUNDS
REVENUES

Taxes $ 8,914,184 $ 2,302,823 $ 1,480,570 $ 12,697,577
Licenses and permits 663,194 18,721 67,145 749,060
Intergovernmental 1,331,187 $ 515,776 870,082 1,215,214 3,932,259
Charges for services 683,154 93,197 388,185 75,302 1,239,838
Fines and forfeitures 8,580 99,464 108,044
Miscellaneous 136,693 25,803 50,145 263,375 476,016

Total Revenues 11,736,992 634,776 3,629,956 0 3,201,070 19,202,794

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 4,875,387 265,226 5,140,613
Public safety 4,574.065 3,787,183 1,266,899 9,628,147
Judicial 1,031,763 8,637 1,040,400
Health and welfare 2,016 264,768 266,784
Culture aad recreation 245,610 693,991 939,601
Community support 607,475 607,475
I-lighways and streets 904,222 904,222

Total Expenditures 11,336,316 904,222 3,787,183 0 2,499,521 18,527,242

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 400,676 (269,446) (157,227) 0 701,549 675,552

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES~
Transfers ia 25,000 300,000 9,000 2,400,000 166,000 2,900,000
Transfers out (2,900,000) (2,900,000)
Short term loan (payments) proceeds (146,640) (146,640)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2.875,000) 300,000 9,000 2,400,000 19,360 (146,640)

Net change in fund balance (2,474,324) 30.554 (148,227) 2,400,000 720,909 528,912

Fund balance - beginning 6,015,420 546,545 393,837 0 5,361,356 12,317,158

Fund balance - ending $ 3.541,096 $ 577.099 $ 245,610 $ 2,400,000 $ 6,082,265 $ 12,846,070

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Net change in fimd balances - governmental fluids, page 13 $ 528,912

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Capital outlays to purchase capital assets are reported in
governmental finds as expenditures. However, those costs
are shown in the statement of net assets and allocated over
their estimated useffil lives as depreciation expense in the
statement of activities. This is the amount by which net
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. 329,714

Net short and medium term loan receipts and payments
reported in governmental finds as net revenue 220,923

Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in governmental fluids 26.685

Change in net assets of governmental activities, page 10 Sl,106.237

The notes to financial staten~nts are
an integral part of this statement
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

REVENUES
Taxes:

Licenses and permits:
Merchandise licenses
Prostitution licenses
Liquor licenses
Utility licenses
Franchise tax
Building permits
Special use permits
Other licenses

Total Licenses and Permits

Intergovernmental:
Federal and slate grants
Payment in lieu of taxes
State shared revenues:

Cigarette lax
Liquor tax
Gaming licenses
Basic CCRT
Supplemental CCRT
Motor Vehicle Priviledge Tax

Real Property Transfer Tax
Total Intergovernmental ____________________ ____________________

Charges for Services:
Clerk Fees
Recorder fees
Assessor fees/commissions
Building department fees
District Court fees
Justice court fees
JOP Court Facility fee
Sheriffs fees
Dog control
Swimming pool admissions/lessons
Park facilities fees
Import tonnage fees
Swim pool - concessions

Total Charges for Services

Property
Youth Services

Total Taxes

BUDGETED AMOUNTS
ORIGrNAL FINAL

ACTUAL
AMOUNTS

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)

$ 8,929,998 S 8,929,998 $ 8,890,490 $ (39,508)
24,171 24,171 23,694 (477)

8,954,169 8,954,169 8,914,184 (39,985)

55,000 55,000 64,917 9,917
150,000 150,000 151,150 1,150

0 0 1,500 1,500
150,000 150,000 182,638 32,638
45,000 45,000 55,307 10,307

200,000 200,000 193,421 (6,579)
10,000 10,000 14,111 4,111
7,000 7,000 150 (6,850)

617,000 617,000 663,194 46,194

0 0 3,054 3,054
20,000 20,000 34,790 14,790

22,781 22,781 19,543 (3,238)
5,221 5,221 5,092 (129)

140,000 140,000 148,422 8,422
406,287 406,287 224,111 (182,176)
563,319 563,319 563,319 0
301,188 301,188 288,294 (12,894)
118,795 118,795 44,562 (74,233)

1,577,591 1,577,591 1,331,187 (246,404)

10,000 10,000 16,795 6,795
20,000 20,000 36,755 16,755

150,000 150,000 198,697 48,697
4,500 4,500 6,328 1,828
3,000 3,000 3,130 130
4,000 4,000 8,067 4,067

10,000 10,000 6,190 (3,810)
15,000 15,000 39,431 24,431

0 0 1,994 1,994
14,000 14,000 17,738 3,738

500 500 700 200
325,000 325,000 342,304 17,304

0 0 5,025 5,025
556,000 556,000 683,154 127,154

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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Page 2 of 5

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDUE) JUNE 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITh
FINAL BUDGET

BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES (cont’dj
Fines and Forfeits:

District fine 0 0 3,218 3,218
Juvenile fines/assessments 1,500 1,500 1,484 (16)
Chemical analysis fees 2,000 2,000 3,878 1,878

Total Fines and Forfeits 3,500 3,500 8,580 5,080

Miscellaneous:
Rents 25.000 25,000 32,932 7,932
Penalties - current year 10,000 10,000 49,938 39,938
Penalties - prior years 12,500 12,500 17,197 4,697
Interest 100,000 100,000 22,881 (77,119)
Other 3,000 3,000 13,745 10,745

Total Miscellaneous 150,500 150,500 136,693 (13,807)

Total Revenues 11,858,760 11,858,760 11,736,992 (121,768)

EXPENDITURES
General Government

Coihmissioners:
Salaries and wages 388,371 388,371 388,307 64
Employee benefits 207,426 207,426 160,729 46,697
Services and supplies 36,000 36,000 24,975 11,025

631,797 631,797 574,011 57,786
Clerk Treasurer:

Salaries and “ages 188,916 188,916 192,750 (3,834)
Employee benefits 119,838 119,838 106,919 12,919
Services and supplies 76,800 76,800 41,345 35,455
Capital outlay 3,000 3,000 3,000 0

388,554 388,554 344,014 44,540
Recorder:

Salaries and “ages 204,713 204,713 160,192 44,521
Employee benefits 104,004 104,004 70,682 33,322
Services and supplies 61,000 61,000 47,184 13,816
Capital outlay 5,000 5,000 0 5,000

374,717 374,717 278,058 96,659
Assessor:

Salaries and “ages 289,763 289,763 289,109 654
Employee benefits 170,223 170,223 184,031 (13,808)
Services and supplies 27,000 27,000 21,886 5,114
Capital outlay 3,500 3,500 0 3,500

490,486 490,486 495,026 (4,540)
Administrative:

Employeebenefits 175,000 175,000 145,168 29,832
Services and supplies 1,862,571 1,862,571 1,411,397 451,174
Capital outlay 10,000 10,000 4,000 6,000

2,047,571 2,047,571 1,560,565 487,006

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

EXPENDITURES
General Government (contd.)

Building and Grounds:
Salaries and wages 177,778 177,778 180,711 (2,933)
Employeebenefits 116.334 116,334 102,808 13,526
Services and supplies 106,815 106,815 103,181 3,634
Capital outlay 266,000 266,000 123,787 142,213

666,927 666,927 510,487 156,440
Planning Commission:

Salaries and “ages 225,403 225,403 221,111 4,292
Employee benefits 89,406 89,406 80,859 8,547
Services and supplies 60,200 60,200 46,685 13,515
Capital outlay 1,000 1,000 174 826

376,009 376,009 348,829 27,180

Service:
Salaries and wages 106,252 106,252 114,158 (7,906)
Employee benefits 60,577 60,577 54,036 6,541
Services and supplies 55,839 55,839 42,883 12,956
Capital outlay 22,500 22.500 4,085 18,415

245,168 245,168 215,162 30,006

Comptroller:
Salaries and wages 193,142 193,142 182,347 10,795
Employee benefits 73,956 73,956 71,026 2,930
Services and supplies 11,500 11,500 4,621 6,879
Capital outlay 8,000 8,000 0 8,000

286,598 286,598 257,994 28,604

IT:
Salaries and wages 116,904 116,904 116,563 ,, 341
Employees benefits 58,856 58,856 50,463 8,393
Services and supplies 60,200 60,200 36,552 23,648
Capital outlay 90,000 90,000 87,663 2,337

325,960 325,960 291,241 34,719

Total General Government 5,833,787 5,833,787 4,875,387 958,400

Judicial:
District Attorney:

Salaries and wages 347,428 347,428 368,788 (21,360)
Employee benefits 160,942 160,942 135,054 25,888
Services and supplies 40,400 40,400 27,223 13,177

548,770 548,770 531,065 17,705
District Court:

Salaries and wages 45,000 45,000 35,000 10,000
Services and supplies 110,500 110,500 76,743 33,757

155,500 155,500 111,743 43,757

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL POSITIVE
ORiGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

EXPENDITURES
General Government (contd.)

Justice of the Peace:
Salaries and “ages 262,736 262,736 216,165 46,571
Employeebenefits 154,446 154,446 144,400 10,046
Services and supplies 71,100 71,100 28,390 42,710

488,282 488,282 388,955 99,327

Total Judicial 1,192,552 1,192,552 1,031,763 160,789

Public Safety:
Sheriff:

Salaries and wages 2,007,740 2,007,740 1,827,909 179,831
Employee benefits 1,241,761 1,241,761 1,127,699 114,062
Services and supplies 523,149 523,149 262,488 260,661
Capital outlay 6,500 6,500 4,863 1,637

3,779,150 3,779,150 3,222,959 556,191

Building Department:
Salaries and wages 349,861 349,861 303,898 45,963
Employee benefits 195,269 195,269 143,883 51,386
Services and supplies 48,600 48,600 36,524 12,076
Capital outlay 12,000 12,000 3,906 8,094

605,730 605,730 488,211 117,519
Emergency Management:

Salaries and wages 21,678 21,678 23,736 (2,058)
Employee benefits 20,868 20,868 18,926 1,942
Services and supplies 58,600 58,600 11,148 47,452
Capital outlay 15,000 15,000 0 15,000

116,146 116,146 53,810 62,336
Communications

Salaries and wages 493,105 493,105 519,189 (26,084)
Employee benefits 261,502 261,502 194,015 67,487
Services and supplies 119,000 119,000 88,195 30,805
Capital outlay 15,000 15,000 7,686 7,314

888,607 888,607 809,085 79,522

Total Public Safety 5,389,633 5,389,633 4,574,065 815,568

Health:
Home Health:

Services and supplies 2,016 2,016 2,016 0

Culture and Recreation:
Swimming Pools & Parks

Salaries and wages 79,430 79,430 68,260 11,170
Employee benefits 23,071 23,071 16,526 6,545
Services and supplies 118,350 118,350 36,831 81,519
Capital outlay 15,000 15,000 0 15,000

235,851 235,851 121,617 114,234

- The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA -

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

Library:
Salaries and wages 71,010 71,010 75.252 (4,242)
Employee benefits 28,146 28,146 24,934 3,212
Services and supplies 28,900 28,900 17,663 11,237

128,056 128,056 117,849 10,207

Regional Transportation Commission:
Salaries and wages 960 960 400 560
Employee benefits 151 151 45 106
Services and supplies 18,500 18,500 5,699 12,801

19,611 19,611 6,144 13,467

Total Culture and Recreation 383,518 383,518 245,610 137,908

Community Support:
Aging Services:

Salaries and wages 20,592 20,592 21,078 (486)
Employeebenefits 3,244 3,244 1,878 1,366
Services and supplies 587,380 587,380 584,519 2.861

Total Community Support 611,216 611,216 607,475 3,741

Total Expenditures 13,412,722 13,412,722 11,336,316 2,076,406

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue over Expenditu (1,553,962) (1,553,962) 400,676 1,954,638

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
lntergovermnental 207,000 207,000 0 (207,000)
Transfers in 25,000 25,000 25,000 0
Transfers out (1,527,500) (3,127,500) (2,900,000)’ 227,500
Contingency (402,382) (402,382) 0 402,382

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,697,882) (3,297,882) (2,875,000) 422,882

Net Change in Fund Balance (3,251,844) (4,851,844) (2,474,324) 2,377,520

Fund balance - beginning 4,171,567 6,015,420 6,015,420 0

Fund balance - ending $ 919,723 $ 1,163,576 $ 3,541,096 $ 2,377,520

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
ROADS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL BUDGET

BUDGETED FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

REVENUE
Intergovernmental

Gasoline tax $ 142,540 $ 142,540 $ 151,305 $ 8,765
SupplementalCCRT 334,471 334,471 334,471 0
Intergovernmental agreement 30,000 30,000 30,000 0

Charges for services
Import tonnage fees 100,000 100,000 93,197 (6,803)

Other revenue
Interest 15,000 15,000 857 (14,143)
Miscellaneous 12,500 12,500 24,946 12.446

Total Revenue 634,511 634,511 634,776 265

EXPENDITURES
Highways and streets

Salaries and wages 323,547 323,547 293,560 29,987
Salary costs 147,840 147,840 98,064 49,776
Services and supplies 135,715 135,715 359,337 (223,622)
Capital outlay 648,575 648,575 59,300 589,275

Debt service
Principle 74,286 74,286 74,286 0
Interest 20,096 20,096 19,675 421

Total Expenditures 1,350,059 1,350,059 904,222 445,837

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (715,548) (715,548) (269,446) 446,102

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers 300.000 300,000 300.000 0

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing -

sources over expenditures (415,548) (415,548) 30,554 446,102

Fund balance - beginning 702,079 702,079 546,545 (155,534)

Fund balance - ending $ 286,531 $ 286,531 $ 577.099 $ 290,568

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.

20



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
FIRE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITh
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

BUDGETED FINAL ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

REVENUE
Taxes

Property $ 2,307,667 $ 2,302,823 $ (4,844)
Intergovernmental revenues

Supplemental CCRT 862,582 862,582 0
Intergovernmental agreement 30,000 7,500 (22,500)

Licenses and permits
Ambulance program & license fees 7,500 18,721 11,221

Charges for services
Fire/ambulance fees 180.000 329,329 149,329
Inspection fees 25,000 58,856 33,856

Other revenue
Miscellaneous -other 0 50,145 50,145

Total Revenues 3,412,749 3,629,956 217,207

EXPENDITURES
Public Safety

Salaries and wages 2,092,669 2,053,027 39,642
Salary costs 1,299,492 1,221,296 78,196
Services and supplies 308,045 474,674 (166,629)
Capital outlay 0 38,186 (38,186)

Total Expenditures 3,700,206 3,787,183 (86,977)

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures (287,457) (157,227) 130,230

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer In 236,500 9,000 (227,500)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other

financing sources (uses) over expenditures (50,957) (148,227) (97,270)

Fund balance - beginning 444,924 393.837 (51,087)

Fund balance - ending $ 393,967 $ 245,610 $ (148,357)

The notes to fmancial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
TRJ PAYBACK FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

EXPENDITURES
General government

Tn Payback capital outlay $ 800,000 $ 0 $ 800.000

Total General Government 800,000 0 800,000

Total Expenditures 800,000 0 800,000

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 800,000 2,400,000 1,600,000
Excess (deficiency) of other financing sources

over expenditures 0 2,400,000 2,400,000

Fund balance - beginning 0 0 0

Fund balance - ending $ 0 $ 2,400,000 $ 2,400,000

The notes to fmancial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY. NEVADA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2010

BUSINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS
WATER VIRGINIA
SYSTEM DIVIDE SEWER TOTAL

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash $ 843,572 $ 492,451 $ 1,336,023
Accounts receivable 36,830 13,317 50,147
Interest receivable 212 124 336

Total Current Assets 880,614 505.892 1,386,506

Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation 5,293,717 355,829 5,649,546

Total Assets 6,174,331 861,721 7,036,052

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 19,149 3,815 22,964
Refundable deposits 11,765 0 11,765
Bonds payable - current portion 24,822 4,785 29,607
Accrued expenses 5,850 5,054 10,904
Accrued interest 1,800 0 1,800

Total Current Liabilities 63,386 13,654 77,040

Long Term Liabilities
Bonds payable - net of current portion 630,704 62,421 693,125

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets - net of related debt 4,638,191 288,623 4,926,814
Unrestricted 842,050 497,023 1,339,073

Total Net Assets $ 5,480,241 $ 785,646 $ 6,265,887

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2010

BUSINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS
WATER VIRGINIA
SYSTEM DIVIDE SEWER TOTAL

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 343,635 $ 141,622 $ 485,257

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 62,466 55,581 118,047
Salary costs 42,994 38,890 81,884
Services and supplies 181,473 71,025 252,498
Depreciation 108,828 39,963 148,791

Total Operating Expense 395,761 205,459 601,220

Operating Income (Loss) (52,126) (63,837) (115,963)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Rent and miscellaneous 12,000 0 12,000
Interest income 1,850 1,171 3,021
Interest expense (17,182) (3,091) (20,273)
Capital contributions and grants 8,288 4,675 12,963

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 4,956 2,755 7,711

Change in net assets (47,170) (61,082) (108,252)

Net assets - beginning 5,527,411 846,728 6,374,139

Net assets - ending $ 5,480,241 $ 785.646 $ 6,265,887

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

BUSINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS
WATER VIRGINIA
SYSTEM DIVIDE SEWER TOTALS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Inflows

Sales of water/sewer fees $ 342,487 $ 141,504 S 483,991
Cash Outflows

Salaries and wages (59,486) (52.125) (111,611)
Salary costs (42,253) (39,105) (81,358)
Services and supplies (208,994) (84,715) (293,709)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 31,754 (34,441) (2,687)

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Inflows

Rent 12,000 0 12,000
Customer deposits 2,885 0 2,885

Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital
Financing Activities 14,885 0 14,885

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Inflows

Capital contributions 8,288 4,675 12,963
Cash Outflows

Debt service (23,313) (4,311) (27,624)
Interest expense (17,182) (3,091) (20,273)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and
Related Financing Activities (32,207) (2,727) (34,934)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash Inflows

Interest earnings 1,970 1,259 3,229

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 16,402 (35.909) (19,507)

Cash - beginning 827,170 528,360 1,355,530

Cash-ending $ 843,572 $ 492,451 $ 1,336,023

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2010

AGENCY
FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 105,585

LIABILITIES
Due to other governments $ 105,585

Net Assets $ 0

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO fiNANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2010

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. REPORTING ENTITY

Storey County, Nevada, a local govermnent created under the provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes 243.110
is governed by an elected three-member board ofcommissioners. As required by generally accepted accounting
principles, these fmancial statements present the government and its component units, entities for which the
government is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate
entities, are in substance, part of the government’s operations and so data from these units are combined with
data of the primary government.

Blended Component Units - The Virginia Divide Sewer Improvement District is under the direct oversight of
the Storey County Board of Commissioners. The rates for users charges and bond issuance authorizations are
approved by the County Commissioners, and the legal liability for the Virginia Divide Sewer District’s debt
remains with Storey County. The District is reported as an enterprise fund.

The governing body for the towns of Virginia City and Gold Hill is the board of County Commissioners of
Storey County. The county persounel provide essentially all services for both Virginia City and Gold Hill.
These towns are reported as special reenue funds.

Excluded from the reporting entity - Storey County Schools, Storey County Senior Center, Virginia City
Convention and Tourism authority, and Canyon General Improvement District.

These potential component units have separate elected or appointed boards and provide services to residents,
generally within the geographic boundaries of the government. These potential component units are excluded
from the reporting entity because the government does not have the ability to exercise influence over their daily
operations, approve budgets, or provide finding.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in net
assets) report information on all ofthe nonfiduciaryactivities ofthe primary government and its component units.
For the most part the effect of interfünd activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported, separatelyfrom
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degrees to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function
or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting, as are proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statentnts. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Gross receipts aid sales taxes are considered “measurable” when in the hands of intermediary
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collecting agents or governments. Revenues are considered availablewhen they are collectiblewithin the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the County considers
revenues to be available if they are collectedwithin 60 days after the end of the current fiscal period. Anticipated
refunds of taxes are recorded as liabilities and reductions of revenue when they are measurable and the payment
seems certain. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the County.

The government reports the following major governmental hinds:
The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another flind.

The Fire Special Revenue Fund accounts for money received primarily from intergovernmental sources.
Expenditures are for County fire protection including the purchase of machinery and equipment to provide
such services.

The Tn PaybackFund accounts for monies which shall be required to be paid back to the developers of the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center as detailed inNote XVII.

The Road Special Revenue Fund accounts for money received primarily from gasoline taxes and other
intergovernmental sources. Expenditures are for the constrnction and maintenance of County roads and
bridges, and other road related infrastructure and the purchase of machinery and equipment required to do
such work. (Elected to be reported as najor fund.)

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:
The Water System Fund accounts for the activities of the Virginia City/Gold Hill water distribution system.

The Virginia Divide Sewer System Fund accounts for the operations of the sewage treatment plant, pumping
stations and collection systems.

As a general rule the effect of interflind activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the governments water and sewer functions.
Eliminations of these changes would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various
functions concerned.

Amounts reported as Program Revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally
dedicated resources are reported as General Revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general
revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary fhnds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services or producing and delivering goods in connectionwith the
proprietary hinds’ principal ongoing operations. Revenue and expense not meeting this definition are reported
as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY

1. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENT

The government’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, short term
investments with original maturities ofthree months or less from the date ofacquisition, and the State Treasurer’s
investment pool. Investments are reported at ~fr value.

2. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other funds”.
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All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. No allowance is recorded for property
tax receivables. Property taxes are levied as of July 1 on property values assessed on the same date. The tax
le~y maybe paid in four installments by the third Monday in August, and the first Monday in October, January
and March. There is a ten day grace period allowed for each installment. Penalties and interest are assessed on
all delinquent collectiom. Liens are filed on the property at one year’s delinquency.

3. INVENTORIES AND PREPAID ITEMS

No inventories are maintained by the government for either operating or office supplies. These items are
recorded as expenditures when purchased, rather than when consumed.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items.

4. RESTRICTED ASSETS

The County has no restricted assets as June 30,2010.

5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capitalassets, which includeproperty, plant, equipment, and infrastructure (i.e., roads, bridges, sidewalks, stonn
drains, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $3000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimited fhir market value at the date of donation

The cost ofnormal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets
lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized in proprietary finds as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of proprietary find fixed assets is reflected in the
capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated in the proprietary fUnds using the straight line method over the
following useful lives:

ASSETS YEARS
Public and System Infrastructure 20-100
Vehicles 5-10
Office Equipment 5-10
Equipment 10-20
Buildings 75-100
Building Improvements 35-50
Computer Equipment 5
Furniture and Fixtures 7-10

6. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

It is the government’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay
benefits. Vested or accumulated vacation pay that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available
financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fUnd liability of the find that will pay it. Amounts of
vested or accumulated vacation pay that are not expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources are reported as long term debt. No expenditure is reported for these amounts. No liability is recorded
for nonvesting accumulating rights to receive sickpay benefits. However a liabilityis recognized for that portion
of accumulated sick leave benefits that is required to be paid upon termination. All employees with a minimum
accrued sick leave of 360 hours to a maximum of 960 hours (except for fire department - no maximum) shall be
paid at retirentnt or termination of service, other than involuntary termination as follows:

Other Employees Fire Department
Years of Continuous Service Rate of Pay Rate of Pay
5 years but less than 10 yeats 12.50 on the Dollar 20.00 on the Dollar
10 years but less than 15 years 25.00 on the Dollar
10 years but less than 20 years 35.00 on the Dollar
15 years but less than 20 years 40.00 on the Dollar
20 years or more 50.00 on the Dollar 50.00 on the Dollar
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The maximum sick leave paid upon termination shall be $5,000 for all employees.

Law Enforcement personnel:

Less than 10 years of service shall be paid at a rate of 20% of their base rate of pay for each hours, not to exceed SI ,500

10 to 20 years of service shall be paid at a rate of 40% of their base rate of pay for each hour, not to exceed $2,500

More than 20 years of service shall be paid at a rate of 60% of their base rate of pay for each hour, not to exceed $4,000

7. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.

The County currently has no long term bonds payable in the governmental funds. The revenue bonds
reported in the proprietaryfund-types incurred no bondpremiums or discounts and therefore have no deferred
charges or amortization

8. FUND EQUITY

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report designations of fund balances for amounts which
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. The County has reserved $ 0 of the general
fund balance at July 1,2010.

II. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliationbetweenfund balance - totalgovernmentalfunds
and net assets - governmentalactivities as reported in the government-wide statement ofnet assets. One element
of that reconciliationexplains that “long tent liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the funds “. The details of this $7,717,783 difference are as
follows: Capital assets net of related depreciation are not reported in the Governmental Funds financial
statements because they are not current financial resources, but they are reported in the statement ofnet assets -

$8,549,660. Long term liabilities are itt due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported
in the funds. ($832,477)

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmentalfunds and changes in net assets of
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciationexpense. The details of this $589,447 difference are as follows: Capital outlays to purchase capital
assets are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, those costs are shown in the statement of
net assets and allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense in the statement of activities.
This is the amount by which net capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period - $329,714. Some
revenues and expenses in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds -$38,807. Some short and medium term loans
and payments are reported inthe governmental kinds -$220,926.

III. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for all
governmental funds.
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The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary date reflected in the financial statentnts:

1. Prior to April 15, the County budget officer submits to the County Commissioners the tentative operating
budgets (4) for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budgets include proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. The tentative budgets are filed with the State Departnrnt of Taxation by April 15.

3. Apublic hearing is conducted at the County Court House to obtain taxpayers comments. (3rd Monday in May)

4. The final budgets are adopted and filed with the State Department of Taxation. Final budgets must be
certified by a majority ofall members of the governing body. The final budgets must be adopted on or before
June 1.

5. Budget amounts may be transferred within hands if the governing body is advised and the action is recorded
in the official minutes of the next meeting. Revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fUnd must be
approved by the County Commissioners. Budget revisions must also be filed with the State Department of
Taxation.

6. Budgets forthe General, SpecialRevenues, Debt Service,Proprietary, and CapitalProjectsFunds are adopted
on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. (GAAP)

7. Budget augmentations were prepared for the general hind and various special revenue hands during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2010.

8. All budget appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

In accordance with State statute, actual expenditures may not exceed budgetary appropriations of the various
governmental programs of the General Fund or total appropriations of the Special Revenue and Capital Projects
Funds, except as expressly authorized by law.

B. EXCESS EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

For the year ended June 30, 2010, expenditures exceeded appropriations as follows:

Expenditures Appropriations
Fire Special Revenue Fund S 3,787,183 $3,700,206
Indigent Accident Special Revenue Fund $ 120,561 $ 80,145

C. DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

No fUnds incurred a deficit hand equity at June 30, 2010.

D. COMPLIANCE - NRS 354.624

Storey County has two enterprise hinds: the Water System Enterprise Fund and the Virginia-Divide Sewer
Improvement District Enterprise Fund. Storey County also maintains agency flmds as follows: State ofNevada
Fund Storey County School District Fund, Storey County School District Debt Service Fund and the Virginia
City Convention and Tourism Authority Fund. The County maintains no internal service fUnds, self insurance
hinds or hands whose balance is required by law to be used for a specific purpose other than the payment of
compensation to a bargaining unit, as defined in NRS 288.028 or carried forward to the succeeding fiscal year
in any designated amount.

All enterprise and agency hinds maintained by Storey County:
a) are being used in accordance with NRS 354.624
b) are being administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures
c) all reserves in the hands are reasonable and necessary to carry out the purposes of the hinds
d) reflect the sources of revenues available for the fund during the fiscal year - including transfers from other

funds
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e) are following the statutory and reg~alatory requirements applicable to tlt funds
I) reflect the balance and retained earning of the finds

Storey County has $0 reserved in all funds.

IV. CASH

At year end, the carrying amount of the bank balances was $17,089,334. Of the bank balances $750,100 was
covered by federal depositary insurance. Additionally $12,232,169 cash was on deposit with the Nevada State
Treasurer. The fair value of all cash and investments equaled 100% of book value.

Credit risk classification of the County’s cash is as follows:

I. Insured by Federal Deposit Insurance $ 750,100
2. Collateralized with securities held by

TheNevada State Treasurer 12,232,169

3. Uncollateralized with the financial institution 4.103,326
4. Uncollateralized - cash on hand 3,739

$ 17089,334

Cash held by the County is allocated to tlr various finds as follows:

Major governmental funds $ 9,260,366
Non-major governmental funds 6,387,360
Business-type funds t,336,023

16,983,749
Fiduciary funds 105.585

Total $17,089,334

V. RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year end for the governments individual major finds and non-major finds in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accomts, are as follows:

Non-Major Proprietary
General Roads Fire Funds Funds Total

Receivables:
Taxes $ 222,435 $ 57,626 $35,361 S 315,422
Accounts 244,524 S 88.103 208,921 21,085 $50,934 613,567
Interest 1.516 135 _________ 258 336 2.245

Gross Receivables 468,475 88,238 266,547 56,704 51,270 931,234
Less: Allowance for
uncollectibles __________ ________ 34,302 _________ 787 35.089

Net Total
Receivables 5 468,475 $88,238 S 232,245 $ 56,704 S 50,483 S 599.145

The delinquent taxes receivable account represents the past three years ofuncollected tax levies. No allowance
for uncollectibles has been recorded by the County. Taxes received after 60 days of the year end are recorded
as deferred revenue.

Accounts receivable include intergovernmental receivables. All accounts receivable, with the exception of the
enterprise fund, were collected within a 60 day period, therefore no allowance for uncollectibles was recorded
in those Ilinds.
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Governmental thnds report deferredrevenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered
to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. At the end of the current fiscal year the various
components of deferred revenuereported in the governmental finds were as follows:

Delinquent property taxes receivable:
General ftind $ 227190
Fire thnd 40,057
Non-major finds 38,388

Defeffed revenue - District Court 1.990.302
Total 52.295.937

VI. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset acti~ity for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Primary Government
Governmental activities

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 249,292 $ 30,967 $ 280,259
Construction in progress __________ 597.109 ________ 597,109

Total Capital assets not being depreciated 249.292 628,076 0 877.368

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 7,030,077 7,030.077
Improvements other than buildings 671,490 19,863 691,353
Machinery and equipment 5,332,003 398,233 5,730,236
Infrastructure 0 0 0 0

Total capital assets being depreciated 13.033.570 418.096 0 13.451.666

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 1,564,339 126.457 1,690,796
Improvements oilier than buildings 122,183 26,716 148,899
Machinery and equipment 3,376,394 563,285 0 3.939.679
Infrastructure 0 0 0 0

Total accumulated depreciation 5.062.916 716.458 0 5,779.374

Governmental activities capital assets - net $8,219,946 S 329,714 S 0 $8,549,660

Business type activities:
Capital assets being depreciated

Waterandsewersystem $7,155,464 $7,155,464
Machinery and equipment 546.048 ___________ ___________ 546,048

Total Capital assets being depreciated 7.701.512 5 0 S 0 7,701,512

Less accumulated depreciation for
Water and sewer systems 1,603,938 108,828 1,712,766
Machinery and equipment 299.237 39.963 0 339,200

Total accumulated depreciation 1.903.175 148.791 0 2,051,966

Business typeactivities capital assets - net $5,798,337 S (148.791) $ 0 $ 5,6497543

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government S 188,101
Public safety 414,605
Highways and streets, including depreciation
of general infrastructureassets 91,818

Culture and recreation 21.934
Total depreciation expense -

Governmental activities 5 716.458

Business type activities:
Water $ 108,828
Sewer 39.963

Total depreciation expense -

business type activities $ 148.791
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VII. 1NTERFUIQD ASSETS/LIABILITIES

There were no interflind balances as of June 30, 2010.

Interfiind transfers:

Transfer From Transfer to Amount
General Fund Tii Payback Fund S 2,400000
General Fund Capital Projects Fund 200,000
General Fund Road Fund 300,000
First District Fund General Fund 25,000
Fire District Fund Fire Fund 9,000

$ 2,934.000

VIII. CAPITAL LEASES

On January 11, 2002, Storey County entered into a lease agreement as lessee for financing the acquisition of (4)
Pierce Hawk Wildlands fire apparatus. This lease qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes (title
transfers at the end of the lease term), and therefore was recorded at the present value of the future minimum
lease payments as of the date of inception. The following schedule represents the future minimum lease
payments as of June 30, 2010.

Fiscal Year Ending
June 30.
2011 t49,175
2012 149,175
2013 109,451

S 407,801
Less amounts representing interest 29,142
Present value of ftture minimum

Lease payments S 378.659

IX. MEDIUM TERM AflD LONG TERM DEBT

Special Assessment Bonds - The County has no special assessn~nt bonds outstanding at June 30, 2010.

Contracts Payable - The County has no contracts payable at June 30, 2010.

Medium Term Loan - On December21, 2008, Storey County entered into a medium term bond with Bank of
America for $520,000 bearing interest at a rate of4.85% per annum. Repayment terms are interest onlypayable
on June 21, with principal and interest payable on December 21 annually. The following schedule represents
the debt service requirements:

Principal Interest Total
December21, 2010 74,286 9,007 83,293
June2l,20l1 7,206 7,206
December 21,2011 74,286 7,206 81,492
iune2l,2012 5404 5.404
December 21,2012 74,286 5,404 79,690
June2l,20l3 3,603 3,603
December2l,2013 74,285 3,603 77.888
June2I,2014 1,801 1,801
December2l,2014 74,285 1,801 76,086

$371,428 S 45,035 $416,463

Revenue Bonds - The County issued bonds, where the County pledges income derived from the acquired or
constructed assets to pay debt service. Revenues bonds outstanding at June 30, 2010 are as thllows:

$714,000 water revenue bonds with semi-annual installments of interest and annual payments of principal
totaling $38,801 per year through January 1,2037, used for improvements to the Virginia City water system.

BALANCE BALANCE
6/30/09 RETIRED 6/30/10

S 610,839 $11,313 S 599.526
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$294,000 waterrevenue bonds due in annual installments of$10,000 to $15,000 through January 1,2014, used
for improvements to the Virginia City Water System.

BALANCE BALANCE
6/30/09 RETIRED 6/30/10

S 68.000 512,000 $ 56.000

$138,000 sewerrevenue bonds due at $673 per month including principal and interestthrough June 1,2021 and
a final payment of approximately $260 used for improvements to the Virginia-Divide Sewer System.

BALANCE BALANCE
6/30/09 RETIRED 6/30/10

$71,517 $4,311 567.206

Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity including interest of $476,468 are as follows:

YEAR ENDING
JUNE 30. ANNUAL TOTAL

2011 to 2014 $62,300 to $62,600 $ 250,700
2015 to 202! 46.900 to 44.900 327,700
2022 to 2037 38,800 620,800

$1,199,200

Changes In Long-Term Liabilities- During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the following changes occurred
in liabilities reported inthe general long term debt group:

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1,2009 ADDITIONS REDUCTIONS JUNE 30. 2010

Compensated absences $ 126,839 $ 0 $ 44,449 $ 82,390
Capita! leases 507.534 0 128,876 378,658

5 634.373 $ 0 5 173,325 5461,4048

X. SEGMENT INFORMATION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The County issued revenue bonds to finance its water department and sewage treatment facilities. Summary
information for these funds is presented below

virginia Divide
Water Fund Sewer Fund

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSErS

ASSETS
Current assets $ 880,614 $ 505,892
Capital assets 5.293,7 17 355.829

TotalAssets 6.174,33! 861.721

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 63,386 13,654
Non-current liabilities 630,704 62.42!

Total Liabilities 694,090 76.075

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,638,191 288,623
Unrestricted 842.050 497,023

Total Net Assets 55.480,24! S 785.646

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REvENUES AND EXPENSES

Operating revenue S 343,635 5 141,622
Depreciation (108,828) (39,963)
Other operating expenses (286.933) (165.496)

Operating income (loss) (52,126) (63,837)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Rent income 12,000
Interest income 1,850 1,17!
Interest expense (17,182) (3,09!)
Capital contributions and grants 8.288 4,675

Change in net assets S (47.170) S (61.082)
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Net cash provided (used) by
Operating activities S 31,754 $ (34,441)
Noncapital fmancing activities 14,885 0
Capital and related fmancing activities (32,207) (2,727)
Investing activities 1.970 1259

Net increase (decrease) in cash 16.402 (35.909)
Cash - beginning 827.170 528,360

Cash - ending $ 843.572 S 492,451

XI. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Countyparticipates in both Federal and State Grant Programs. The audits of these programs for or including
the year ended June 30, 2010 have not been finalized. Accordingly, the County’s compliance with applicable
grant requirements will be establisird at some future date. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the County expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The County is currently a defendant in no lawsuits, with no other unasserted possible claims which are probable
of assertion

XII. AVAILABLE BORROWING CAPACITY

The Nevada Revised Statutes section 244.805, limits the County’s general obligation debt to 10% of the
County’s assessedvaluation. The 2009/2010 assessedvaluationis $6 l2,039,000whichwould allowthe bonding
up to $61,203,000. On June 30, 2010, the County had $371,400 outstanding general obligation bonded debt,
exclusive of revenue and school district bonds.

The town of Virginia City general obligation debt limit based on the 2009/20 10 assessed valuation was
$9,750,000 (NRS 269.425). The town of Virginia City has at June 30, 2010 no general obligation bonds
outstanding.

The town of Gold Hill general obligation debt limit based on the 2009/2010 assessed valuationwas $2,626,000
(NRS 269.425). The town of Gold Hill has at June 30, 2010, no general obligation bonds outstanding.

XIII. PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien as of July 1. The tax is levied for the fiscal year beginning July
l”after the Nevada Tax Commission has certified the combined tax rate for the county on May 25th~

Taxes on the property are due on the third Monday in July. Taxes may be paid in quarterly installments, due on
the third Monday of July and the first Monday in October, January and March. Penalties are added if the
installments are not made within ten (10) days of the due date.

XIV. PENSION PROGRAM - NEVADA STATE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The Countyparticipatesin the statewide government retirement system; a multiple-employer, cost sharingpublic
employees pension plan which covers substantially all of the County’s full time employees. The County has no
liability for unfunded obligations of the Nevada State Public Employees Retirement System.

PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. Nevada Revised Statutes establish and amend benefit provisions to be administered
by the Retirement Board. The Public Employees Retirement Board of the State of Nevada issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for PERS.
That report may be obtained from PERS, 693 West Nye Lane, Carson City, Nevada 89703

The Countypays all contributions for all employees coveredunder the plan. PERS basic funding policyprovides
for periodic contributions at a level pattern of cost as a percentage of salary throughout an employees working
lifetime, in order to accumulate sufficient assets to paybenefits when due. Although PERS receives
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an actuarial valuation on an annual basis indicating the contribution rates as required to ifind PERS on an
actuarial reserve basis, both for finding purposes and GASH disclosure purposes, contributions actually made
are in accordance with the required rates establisird by the Nevada State Legislature.

The payroll for employees covered by the system for the year ended June 30, 2010 was $6,813,000. The
County’s total payroll was $7,575,098. Storey County’s contribution to the plan for the year ended June 30,
2010 was $1,966,000. All costs to the Countywere paid or accrued atJune 30,2010 The County’s contribution
represented less than 1% of total contributions to the retirement system.

Currently 124 employees are covered under the retirement plan out of a total of 127 employees. Eligibility
requirements are 40 hours per bi-weekly payroll period, no minimum wage is required for participation, nor is
there any length of service requirement forparticipation. Contributions are made at a rate of 20.5% (33 V2% for
police and firemen) of annual compensation.

XV. SOLID WASTE LANDFILL - LOCKWOOD

In 1992 Reffise, Inc. received an amended special use permit from Storey County for the operation of a solid
waste landfill, conditioned on meeting all of the requirements of federal landfill regulations (Subtitle D, 4OCFR
Parts 257 and 258). Under the terms of the agreement Refuse, Inc. is responsible for all closure and post closure
costs. Estimated costs thr closure are $2,707,050 and the cost for post closure maintenance is $9,307,268 fir
a total of $12,014,318. There are currently no corrective action cost nor other environmental obligations.
Refuse, Inc. is in complete compliance with the Financial Assurance Requirements of 40 CFR, part 258, Subpart
0, as well as Nevada Administrative Code 444.685 - 444.6859. The closure and post closure costs are insured
through Liberty Mutual Insurance Company.

XVI. RISK MANAGEMENT

Storey County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employee and natural disasters. StoreyCounty has joined together
with other counties in the State to fbrm Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool, a public entity risk poo1
currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for 41 governmental entities. The
county pays an annual premium to PENCO for its general insurance coverage. The Agreement for
Formation of the NPAIP program provides that NPAIP will be self-sustaining through member premiums
and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of $100,000 for Property and Crime
and $150,000 Casualty for each insured event.

The County continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks or loss, including workers’
compensation and employee health and accident insurance. Settled claiim resulting from these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

XVII. TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER (TM)

On February 2, 2000, Storey County Nevada, entered into a development agreement with Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center LLC along with DP Operating Partnership, LP for the purposes of completing structures,
including grading, infrastructure, and all public fhcilities related to tie property owned by TM which
consists of approximately 102,000 acres, ofwhich approximately 9,000 acres is zoned for industrial usage
within Storey County. The development agreement represents the commitment between Storey County and
TM to fund the capital infrastructure costs and local community services required by the project.

According to the agreements, TRI is responsible for the construction of the project public infrastructure,
which shall be dedicated to and maintained by Storey County. Such infrastructure includes streets, sidewalks
and streetlights, flood control, drainage channels, storm drains, basins and other related thcilities; and County
building complexes including fire stations, police stations, public works maintenance yards and
administrative offices. The County is not responsible for the construction, operation, and maintenance of the
project private infrastructure such as community water and sewer facilities, railroad trackand related
facilities, landscaping of common areas, or private trails and parks and other property not dedicated to the
County. The County is responsible for separately recording certain revenue and expenses directly
attributable to the TRI project, approving reimbursable costs, and determining the net annual revenue
reimbursement to TM.
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The agreements establish a revenue threshold that represents the annual fiscal year in which the TRI net
revenue exceeds $5,000,000. The revenue threshold must be met before any reimbursements are made to
TM for project related infrastructure costs. Once the revenue threshold is met, the County is responsible for
reimbursing TEl for approved project vouchers up to 35% of annual net revenue. Such reimbursements are
also limited to 5% of the project assessed ~aluation at the end of each year. The revenue threshold was
reported to be met in fiscal years ending June 30, 2007 and 2008, however, additional audit adjustments are
still being discussed by the comptroller and the TM partnership. No vouchers have been approved at June
30, 2010, therefore no reimbursements can be made. The County Controller estimates a potential liabilityto
the County of approximately $2 million and that the audit of the vouchers will commence in the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2011.

The term of this agreement shall commence upon the effective date and shall expire Fifty (50) years after the
effective date, unless extended by written amendment executed by the County and Developer. A special
revenue hind was established as of July 1,2009, to provide payment to our TM partners. A lump sum
payment of $2,400,000 was made by the general hind to the TEl Payback Fund during the fiscal year.

Future allocatiom into the TRI Payback Fund will be a percentage of revenues directly attributed to TM to
include property taxes, business licence, permits, inspection fees, and real property transfer taxes.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2010

SPECIAL REVENUE
FIRE EQUIPMENT INDIGENT JUSTICE INDIGENT

DISTRICT ACQUISITION ASSISTANCE COURT FEES DRUG COURT MEDICAL
ASSETS

Cash $ 301,723 $ 161,257 $ 291 $ 24,930 $ 6,494 $ 790,351
Receivables
Taxes-property 14,581 6,622 4,285
Ac cc tints
Interest 40

TotalAssets $ 316,304 $ 167,919 $ 291 $ 24,930 $ 6,494 $ 794,636

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 1,525 $ 43,209
Deferred taxes $ 10,135 $ 4,208 ______________ ______________ ______________ 3,060

Total Liabilities 10,135 4,208 0 1,525 0 46,269

FUND BALANCE
Designated for future year’s operations $ 3,468 $ 15,000 373,050
Undesignated 302,701 163,711 $ 291 8,405 6,494 375,317

Total Fund Balance 306,169 163,711 291 23,405 6,494 748,367

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 316,304 $ 167,919 $ 291 $ 24,930 $ 6,494 $ 794,636

The notes to financial statements are
in integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30,2010

SPECIAL REVENUE
JAIL EMERGENCY INDIGENT TOWN OF TOWN OF

BUILDING MITIGATION ACCIDENT TECHNOLOGY VIRGINIA CITY GOLD HILL
ASSETS

Cash $ 708,093 $ 100,000 $ 46,916 $ 157,137 $ 160,059 $ 32,053
Receivables

Taxes - property 9,873
Accounts 5 4
Interest 178 _________________ _________________ 40 _________________

Total Assets $ 718,144 $ 100,000 $ 46,916 $ 157,177 $ 160,064 $ 32,057

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 166,730 $ 5,342 $ 100 $ 1,852 $ 167
Deferred taxes 6,861 ______________ ______________ ______________ 12,986 1.139

Total Liabilities 173,591 0 5,342 100 14,838 1,306

FUND BALANCE
Designated for future year’s operations 221,468 $ 124,500 $ 17,600
Undesignated 323,085 $ 100,000 41,574 32,577 $ 145,226 13,151

Total Fund Balance 544,553 100,000 41,574 157,077 145,226 30,751

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance S 718,144 $ 100,000 $ 46,916 $ 157,177 $ 160,064 $ 32,057

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2010

SPECIAL REVENUE CAPITAL PROJECTS
GENETIC

FEDERAL AND FIRE STABILIZATION MARKER CAPITAL INFRASTRUCTURE
STATE GRANTS EMERGENCY FUND TESTING FUND PROJECTS FUND TOTAL

ASSETS
Cash $ 611,932 $ 205,067 $ 1,000,000 $ 6,659 $ 649,916 $ 1,424,482 $ 6,387,360
Receivables

Taxes - property 35,361
Accounts 985 20,091 21,085
Interest 258

Total Assets $ 612,917 S 205,067 $ 1,000,000 $ 6,659 $ 649,916 S 1,444,573 $ 6,444,064

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 62,655 $ 41,830 $ 323,410
Deferred taxes _______________ _______________ _______________ _______________ _______________ _______________ 38,389

Total Liabilities 62,655 0 0 0 41,830 0 361,799

FUND BALANCE
Designated for future year’s operations $ 162,462 $ 200,000 408,702 $ 536,642 2,062,892
Undesignated 550,262 42,605 800,000 $ 6,659 199,384 907,931 4,019,373

Total Fund Balance 550,262 205,067 1,000,000 6,659 608,086 1,444,573 6,082,265

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 612,917 $ 205,067 $ 1,000,000 S 6,659 $ 649,916 $ 1,444,573 $ 6,444,064

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.

41



Page I of3

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

SPECIAL REVENUE
FIRE EQUIPMENT INDIGENT JUSTICE INDIGENT

DISTRICT ACQUISITION ASSISTANCE COURT FEES DRUG COURT MEDICAL
REVENUE

Taxes $ 582,859 $ 264.933 S 159,044
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fineandfees $ 28 $ 4,193 $ 734
Licenses and permits
Other revenues 231,648 310

Total Revenues 814,507 265,243 28 4,193 734 159,044

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 3,684
Public safety 607,417
Judicial 7,902
Culture and recreation
Welfare 144,207

Total Expenditures 607,417 3,684 0 7,902 0 144,207

Excess (deficiency) of revenues overexpenditures 207,090 261,559 28 (3,709) 734 14,837

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (34,000)
Debt service (146,640) 0 0 0 0

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue and Other Financing
Sources (Uses) over Expenditures 173,090 114,919 28 (3,709) 734 14,837

Fund balance - beginning (deficit) 133,079 48,792 263 27,114 5,760 733,530

Fund balance - ending (deficit) $ 306,169 $ 163,711 $ 291 S 23,405 $ 6,494 $ 748,367

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

SPECIAL REVENUE
JAIL EMERGENCY INDIGENT TOWN OF TOWN OF

BUILDING MITIGATION ACCIDENT TECHNOLOGY VIRGINIA CITY GOLD HILL
REVENUE

Taxes $ 394.756 $ 78,978
Intergovernmental $ 1,278 S 1,011
Charges for services $ 75,302
Fine and fees 87,115
Licenses and permits 64,639 2,506
Other revenues 3.355 _________________

Total Revenues 485,226 0 78,978 75,759 65,917 3,517

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 85,823 73,076 2,027
Public safety 636,591
Judicial
Culture and recreation
Welfare 120,561

Total Expenditures 636,591 0 120,561 85,823 73,076 2,027

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (151,365) (41,583) (10,064) (7,159) 1,490

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers
Debt service

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue and Other Financing
Sources (Uses) over Expenditures (151,365) 0 (41,583) (10,064) (7,159) 1,490

Fund balance - beginning 695,918 100,000 83,157 167,141 152,385 29,261

Fund balance - ending $ 544,553 $ 100,000 $ 41,574 $ 157,077 $ 145,226 $ 30,751

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

SPECIAL REVENUES CAPITAL PROJECTS

GENETIC
FEDERAL AND FIRE STABILIZATION MARKER CAPITAL INFRASTRUCTURE

STATE GRANTS EMERGENCY FUND TESTING FUND PROJECTS FUND TOTAL
REVENUE

Taxes $ 1,480,570
Intergovernmental $ 1,079,994 $ 132,931 1,215,214
Charges for services 75,302
Fine and fees $ 7,394 99,464
Licenses and permits 67,145
Other revenues _______________ $ 27,605 _______________ _______________ _______________ _______________ 263,375

Total Revenues 1,079,994 27,605 0 7,394 0 132,931 3,201,070

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 100,616 265,226
Public safety 22,891 1,266,899
Judicial 735 8,637
Culture and recreation 693,991 693,991
Welfare _________________ _________________ _________________ _________________ _________________ _________________ 264,768

Total Expenditures 716,882 0 0 735 100,616 0 2,499,521

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 363,112 27,605 0 6,659 (100,616) 132,931 701,549

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers 200,000 166,000
Debt service _______________ (146,640)

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue and Other Financing
Sources (Uses) over Expenditures 363,112 27,605 0 99,384 132,931 720,909

Fund balance - beginning (deficit) 187,150 177,462 1,000,000 0 508,702 1,311,642 5,361,356

Fund balance - ending (deficit) $ 550,262 $ 205.067 $ 1,000,000 $ 6,659 $ 608,086 $ 1,444,573 $ 6,082,265

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement,
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REVENUES
Taxes

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
FIRE DISTRICT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

ORIGINAL
BUDGETED
AMOUNTS

The notes to financial statements are

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS

an integral part of this statement.

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)

Property taxes
Other Revenues

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Public safety

Service and supplies
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer out

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing
sources (uses) over expenditures

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

5 583,913 $ 583,913 $ 582,859 $ (1,054)

0 170,726 231,648 60,922

583,913 754,639 814,507 59,868

553,828 565,820 555,332 10,488
0 52,828 52,085 743

553,828 618,648 607,417 11,231

30,085 135,991 207,090 71,099

(34,000) (34,000) (34,000) 0

(3,915) 101,991 173,090 71,099

147,557 147,557 133,079 (14,478)

5 143,642 $ 249,548 $ 306,169 $ 56,621
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STOREY COUNTY. NEVADA
EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE, AND CHANGES TN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

REVENUE
Taxes

Property taxes $ 265,878 $ 264,933 $ (945)
Other revenues

Interest 5,000 310 (4,690)
Total Revenues 270,878 265,243 (5,635)

EXPENDITURES
General government

Services and supplies $ 0 2,236 (2,236)
Capital outlay 82,941 1,448 81,493

Debt service
Principal 128,873 128,873 0
Interest 20,301 17,767 2,534

Total Expenditures 232,115 150,324 81,791

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures 38,763 114,919 76,156

Fund balance - beginning 213,475 48,792 (164,683)

Fund balance - ending $ 252,238 $ 163,711 $ (88,527)

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
INDIGENT ASSISTANCE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011)

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES
Fines and Forfeitures S 0 $ 28 $ 28

EXPENDITURES
Welfare

Services and supplies 0 0 0

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures 0 28 28

Fund balance - beginning 263 263 0

Fund balance - ending $ 263 $ 291 $ 28

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
JUSTICE COURT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

REVENUE
Fines

Justice court fine $ 10,000 $ 4,193 $ (5,807)

EXPENDITURES
Judicial

Services and supplies 20,000 7,902 12,098

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (10.000) (3,709) 6,291

Balance - beginning 14,884 27,114 12,230

Balance - ending $ 4,884 $ 23,405 $ 18,521

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
DRUG COURT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES
Fines and forfeits

Drugcourtfees $ 0 $ 734 $ 734

Excess of revenue over expenditures 734 734

Fund balance - beginning 0 5,760 5,760

Fund balance - ending $ 0 $ 6,494 $ 6,494

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
INDIGENT MEDICAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES
Taxes

Propertytaxes $ 159,018 $ 159,044 $ 26

EXPENDITURES
Welfare

Services and supplies 505,000 144,207 360,793

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures (345,982) 14,837 360.819

Fund balance - beginiñng 594,073 733,530 139,457

Fund balance - ending $ 248,091 $ 748,367 $ 500,276

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY. NEVADA
SHERIFF JAIL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS G’4EGATIVE)

REVENUE
Taxes

Property taxes $ 395,636 $ 394,756 $ (880)
Fines

Court fines 100,000 87,115 (12,885)
Other revenues

Interest 8,000 1,842 (6,158)
Miscellaneous 2,500 1,513 (987)

Total Revenues 506,136 485,226 (20,910)

EXPENDITURES
Public safety

Services ai~d supplies 212,900 121,711 91,189
Capital outlay 539,000 514,880 24,120

Total Expenditures 751,900 636,591 115,309

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (245,764) (151,365) 94,399

Fund balance - beginning 553,538 695,918 142,380

Fund balance - ending $ 307,774 $ 544,553 $ 236,779

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
EMERGENCY MITIGATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETAND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay 100,000 0 100,000

Fund balance - beginning 100,000 100,000 0

Fund balance - ending $ 0 $ 100,000 $ 100,000

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
INDIGENT ACCIDENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEARENDED JUNE30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS Q’JEGATIVE)

REVENUES
Taxes

Property taxes $ 80,145 $ 78,978 $ (1,167)

EXPENDITURES
Welfare

Sen’ices and supplies 80,145 120,561 (40,416)

Excess (deficiency) of revenue overexpenditures 0 (41,583) (41,583)

Fund balance - beginning 56,348 83,157 26,809

Fund balance - ending $ 56,348 $ 41,574 $ (14,774)

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
TECHNOLOGY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

S 65,000 $ 75,302 $ 10,302

2,500 457 (2,043)
67,500 75,759 8,259

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.

VARIANCE WITH
ORiGINAL FINAL BUDGET

BUDGETED FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES
Charges for services

Technology fees
Other revenues

Interest income
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government

Services and supplies

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

AMOUNTS

S 65,000

2,500
67,500

65,000

2,500

115,742

S 118,242

91,500 85,823 5,677

(24,000) (10,064) 13,936

167,141 167,141 0

S 143,141 S 157,077 $ 13,936
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
TOWN OF VIRGINIA CITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

REVENUE
Licenses and permits

Business licenses $ 18,000 $ 16,620 $ (1,380)
Liquor licenses 11,000 16,700 5,700
Cabaret licenses 3,000 2,588 (412)
County gaming licenses 30,000 28,110 (1,890)
Penalties 621 621

Intergovernmental
State gaming license 1,400 1,278 (122)

Total Revenues 63.400 65,917 2,517

EXPENDITURES
General government

Services and supplies 43,000 35,576 7,424
Intergovernmental agreement 60,000 37,500 22,500

Total Expenditures 103,000 73,076 29,924

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (39,600) (7,159) 32,441

Fund balance - beginning 126,280 152,385 26,105

Fund balance - ending $ 86,680 $ 145,226 $ 58,546

The notes to fmancial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY. NEVADA
TOWN OF GOLD HILL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

REVENUE
Licenses and permits

Business licenses $ 3,000 $ 1,846 S (1,154)
Penalties 10 10
Licenses - liquor 1,000 500 (500)
Cabaret licenses ISO ISO

Intergovernmental
State gaming licenses 1,100 1,011 (89)

Total Revenues 5,100 3,517 (1,583)

EXPENDITURES
General government

Services and supplies 3,500 2,027 1,473
Total Expenditures 3,500 2.027 1,473

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 1,600 1,490 (110)

Fund balance - beginning 28,507 29,261 754

Fund balance - ending S 30,107 $ 30,751 S (644)

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
FEDERAL/STATE GRANTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental

Federal and State grants $ 1,173,000 $ 1.079.994 $ (93,006)
Total Revenues 1,173,000 1,079,994 (93,006)

EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation

Services and supplies 1,173,000 693,991 479,009
Public safety

County flood 350.000 22,891 327,109
Total Expenditures ________________ ________________ ________________

1,523,000 716,882 806,118
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (350.000) 363,112 713,112

Fund balance - beginning
447,270 187,150 (260,120)

Fund balance - ending
$ 97,270 $ 550,262 $ 452,992

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
FIRE EMERGENCY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

OTHER REVENUES
Miscellaneous $ 35,000 $ 27,605 $ (7,395)

EXPENDITURES
Public Safety

Capital outlay 50,000 0 50,000

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (15,000) 27,605 42.605

Fundbalance-beginning 91,776 177,462 85,686

Fund balance - ending $ 76,776 $ 205,067 $ 128,291

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.

58



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STABILIZATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 1,000,000 0 1,000,000

Excess (deficit) of revenue over expenditures (1,000,000) 0 1,000,000

Fund balance-beginning 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

Fund balance - ending $ 0 $ 1,000,000 $ 1,000,000

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENETIC MARKER TESTING FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2010

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

BUDGETED FINAL ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

REVENUE
Fines

Court fines and fees $ 0 $ 7,394 $ 7,394

EXPENDITURES
Services and supplies 0 735 (735)

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures 0 6,659 6,659

Fund balance - beginiiing 0 0 0

Fund balance - ending $ 0 $ 6,659 $ 6,659

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS G4EGATIVE)

REVENUE
None $ 0 $ 0 S 0

EXPENDITURES
General government

Capital outlay 200.000 100,616 99,384

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (200,000) (100,616) 99,384

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 200,000 200,000 0

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources 0 99,384 99,384

Fund balance - beginning (deficit) 338,047 508,702 170,655

Fund balance - ending $ 338.047 $ 608,086 $ 270,039

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental

¼% Optional sales tax S 125,000 $ 132,931 $ 7,931

EXPENDITURES
General government

Services and supplies 900,000 0 900,000

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (775,000) 132,931 907,931

Fund balance - beginning 804,259 1,311,642 507,383

Fund balance - ending 5 29,259 S 1,444,573 $ 1,415,314

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY. NEVADA
WAThR SYSTEM ENTERPRISE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR ThE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITh
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

OPERATING REVENUES
Sales of water S 400,000 S 343,635 $ (56,365)

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 131,947 62,466 69,481
Salarycosts 64,631 42.994 21,637
Services and supplies 211,353 181,473 29,880
Depreciation 65,000 108,828 (43,828)

Total Operating Expenses 472,931 395,761 77,170

Operatinglncome(Loss) (72,931) (52,126) 20,805

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES1
Capital contributions 0 8,288 8,288
Services and supplies (7,908) 0 7,908
Interest earnings 15,000 1,850 (13,150)
Rents 12,000 12,000 0
Interest expense (31,448) (17,182) 14,266

Net Income (Loss) 5 (85,287) $ (47,170) $ 38,117

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement,
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
WATER SYSTEM ENTERPRISE FUND

SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash In flows

Sales of water $ 400,000 $ 342,487 $ (57,513)
Cash Out flows

Salaries and wages (131,947) (59,486) 72,461
Salarycosts (64,631) (42,253) 22,378
Services and supplies (211,353) (208,994) 2,359

Net Cash Provided (Used) by OperatingActivities (7,931) 31,754 39,685

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash In flows

Customer Hook-ups 12,000 0 (12,000)
Rent 0 12,000 12,000
Customer deposits 0 2,885 2,885

Net Cash Provided by Non Capital Financing Activities 12,000 14,885 2,885

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED ACTIVITIES
Cash In flows

Capital contributed 0 8,288 8,288
Cash Out flows

Services and supplies (7,908) 0 7,908
Capital outlay (103,000) 0 103,000
Debt service (23,314) (23,313) 1
Interest expense (31,448) (17,182) 14,266

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Capital Related Activities (165,670) (32,207) 133,463

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest earnings 15,000 1,970 (13,030)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (146,601) 16,402 163,003

Cash - beginning 570,657 827,170 256,513

Cash - ending $ 424,056 S 843,572 $ 419,516

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
VIRGINIA DIVIDE SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ENTERPRISE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

OPERATING REVENUES
Service use fees $ 201,000 $ 141,622 $ (59,378)

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 70,791 55,581 15,210
Salary costs 36,606 38,890 (2,284)
Services and supplies 94,050 71,025 23,025
Depreciation 30,000 39,963 (9,963)

Total Operating Expenses 231,447 205,459 25,988

Operating Income (Loss) (30,447) (63,837) (33,390)

NON OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSE1
Interest incnme 15,000 1,171 (13,829)
Interest expense (3,524) (3,091) 433

Netincome(Loss) $ (18,971) $ (65.757) $ (46,786)

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
VIRGINIA DIVIDE SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ENTERPRISE FUND

SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash In Flows

SewerFees $ 201,000 $ 141,504 $ (59,496)
Cash Out Flows

Salaries and wages (70,791) (52,125) 18,666
Salarycosts (36,606) (39,105) (2.499)
Service and supplies (94,050) (84,715) 9,335

Net cash provided (used) by Operating Activities (447) (34,441) (33,994)

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

None 0 0 0

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash In Flows
Capital contributed by customers 0 4,675 4,675

Cash Out Flows
Interest expense (3,524) (3,091) 433
Principal - revenue bonds (4,553) (4,311) 242
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (72,000) 0 72,000

Net cash provided (used) by capital related
Financing Activities (80,077) (2,727) 77,350

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income 15,000 1,259 (13,741)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (65,524) (35,909) 29,615

Cash - beginning 441,864 528,360 86,496

Cash - ending $ 376,340 S 492,451 $ 116,111

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF NEVADA FUND
Assets

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

BALANCE
JULY 1,

BALANCE
JUNE 30,

2009 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 2010

Cash

Liabilities

$ (18,954) $ 1,123,621 $ 1,036,877 $ 67,790

Due Other Governments

STOREY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Assets

Cash

Liabilities
Due Other Governments

STOREY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEBT SERVICE

Assets

$ (18,954) $ 1,123.621 S 1,036,877 $ 67,790

$ 53.887 $ 3,951,222 $ 3,995,197 $ 9,912

$ 53,887 $ 3,951,222 $ 3,995,197 $ 9,912

Cash

Liabilities

$ 13,027 $ 761,946 $ 770,431 $ 4,542

Due Other Governments

VIRGINIA CITY CONVENTION AND

$ 13,027 $ 761,946 $ 770,431 S 4,542

TOURISM AUTHORITY

Assets
Cash

Liabilities

$ 7,821 $ 252,704 $ 237,184 5 23,341

Due Other Governments

DISTRICT ATtORNEY RESTITUTION FUND
Assets

$ 7,821 $ 252,704 $ 237,184 $ 23,341

Cash

Liabilities

$ 5,955 $ 3,969 $ 9,924 S 0

Due Other Governments

TOTAL - ALL FUNDS
Assets

$ 5,955 $ 3,969 $ 9,924 S 0

Cash

Liabilities

5 61,736 S 6,093,462 5 6,049,613 5 105,585

Due Other Governments S 61,736 S 6,093,462 S 6,049,613 S 105,585

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

BY SOURCE
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

JUNE 30,
2010 2009

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
Land $ 280,259 $ 249,292
Construction in progress 597,109 0
Building and improvements 7,049,940 7,030,077
Machinery and equipment 671,490 671,490
Park Improvements 5,730,236 5,332,003

Total General Fixed Assets $ 14,329,034 $ 13,282,862

INVESTMENTS IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
BY SOURCE:

General Fund $ 6,784,471 $ 6,489,342
Road Fund 2,356,622 2.278,664
Fire Fund 6,309 6,309
Fire District Fund 2,139,645 1,957,253
Fourth Ward Trustee 1.579,368 1,579,368
Sheriffs Jail 1,462,619 971,926

Total Investment in General Fixed Assets $ 14,329,034 $ 13,282,862

The notes to financial statements are
an intergral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

CONSTRUCTION BUILDING AND PARK MACHINERY AND
FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY LAND IN PROGRESS IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS EQUIPMENT TOTAL
GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Commissioners $ 114,849 $ 182,993 $ 2,595 $ 300,437
Clerk - Treasurers 3,235 3,235
Recorder - Auditor 69,134 69,134
Assessor 24,463 24,463
Building - Grounds 144,620 196,327 340,947
Other - Administrative 165,410 106,416 1,769,340 513,753 2,554,919

Total General Government 280,259 106,416 2,096,953 0 809,507 3,293,135

JUDICIAL
Justice Court 4,090 4,090
District Attorney _________________ _________________ 38,963 38,963

Total Judicial 0 0 0 0 43,053 43,053

PUBLIC SAFETY
Sheriff 490,693 1,615,895 934,195 3,040,783
Fire 6,309 6,309
FireDistrict 126,644 2,013,001 2,139,645
Emergency Management 359,885 359,885
BuildingDepartrnent ______________ ______________ ______________ ______________ 91,820 91,820

Total Public Safety 0 490,693 1,748,848 0 3,398,901 5,638,442

I-IIGHWAY AND STREETS 0 0 905,456 0 1,451,166 2,356,622

CULTURE AND RECREATION 0 0 2,298,683 671,490 27,609 2,997,782

Total General Fixed Assets $ 280,259 $ 597,109 $ 7,049,940 $ 671,490 $ 5,730,236 $ 14.329,034

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

GENERAL FIXED GENERAL FIXED
ASSETS ASSETS

FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY July 1,2009 ADDITIONS DELETIONS TRANSFERS June 30, 2010
GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Commissioners $ 300,437 $ 300,437
Recorder - Auditor 69,134 69,134
Assessor 24,463 24.463
Building - Grounds 326,869 14,078 340,947
Other - Administrative 2,353,002 269,943 _________________ _________________ 2,622,945

Total General Government 3,073,905 284,021 0 0 3,357,926

JUDICIAL
District Attorney 38,963 0 38,963
District Court 4,090 _______________ _______________ _______________ 4,090

Total Judicial 43,053 0 0 0 43,053

PUBLIC SAFETY
Sheriff 2,550,090 490,693 3,040,783
Fire 6,307 6,307
FireDistrict 1,957,253 182,392 2,139,645
Emergency Management 358,169 5,323 363,492
Building Department 96,001 ______________ ______________ ______________ 96,00]

Total Public Safety 4,967,820 678,408 0 0 5,646,228

HIGHWAY AND STREETS 2,278,664 77,958 0 0 2,356,622

CULTURE AND RECREATION 2,919,420 5,785 0 0 2,925,205

Total General Fixed Assets $ 13.282,862 $ 1,046,172 0 0 $ 14,329,034

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS

AND OTHER CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS FROM FUTURE REVENUES
JUNE 30. 2010

DATE AMOUNT INTEREST BALANCE PAID BALANCE TERMS OF PAYMENT OF
COUNTY BONDS OF ISSUE OF ISSUE RATE JUNE 30. 2009 DURING YEAR JUNE 30. 2010 OUTSTANDING BALANCE
Revenue Bonds

County of Storey
Water Revenues Bonds of 1974
(Due United States of America

Farmer’s Home Administration) 6/26/74 $ 294,000 5% $ 68,000 $ 12,000 $ 56,000 $ 13,000 Annually - Jan 1,2011

$ 14,000 Annually-Jan 1,2012-2013
$ 15,000 January 1,2014

WATER REVENUE BOND - SERIES 1998
U.S.D.A. - Rural Development Loan 1/28/97 $ 714,000 4 1/2% $ 610,839 $ 11,313 $ 599,526 $ 38,801 Fiscal Years 6/30/11-6/30/2037

with interest only paid on July I,
and interest and principal paid on
January I, of each year.

VIRGINIA - DIVIDE SEWER
IMPROVEMENTS DISTRICT

Sewer Revenue Bonds Series 1981
(Due General Electric Credit Corp.
Master Services - acquired from
United States of America Farmer’s
1-lome Administration on 09/23/1987) 11/1/81 $ 138,000 5% $ 71,517 $ 4,311 $ 67,206 $ 673 per month

MEDIUM TERM BOND
(7 yr) Due - Bank of America 12/20/07 $ 520,000 4.85% $ 445,714 $ 74,286 $ 371,428 $ 74,286 Fiscal years 6/30/Il - 6/30/IS

with interest only paid on
June21 and principal and
interest paid on December 21,
of each year.

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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DA VID A. PRINGLE, CPA, LTD.
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORA HON

CARSON CITY OFFICE RENO OFFICE
3250 RETAIL DRIVE, SUITE 135 646 HUMBOLDT STREET
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89706 MEMBER RENO, NEVADA 89509

TELEPHONE NUMBER (775) 882-3615 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF TELEPHONE NUMBER (775) 329-7800
FAX NUMBER (775) 882-2339 CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS FAX NUMBER (775) 329-8332

EMAIL - dapcpaItdcc~gmaiI.com NEVADA SOCIETY OF EMAIL - dapcpaItd~gmaiI.com
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GO VERNMENTA UDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretelypresented component units, each major find, and the aggregate remaining find information of Storey County,
Nevada as ofand forthe yearended June 30,2010, whichcollecti-velycomprise StoreyCounty, Nevada’s, basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 22, 2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and perfonning our audit, we considered Storey County, Nevada’s internal control over fmancial reporting
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements and
not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control would
not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses.
A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that
would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the
internal control overfinancialreporting and its operationthatwe considerto bematerialweaknesses. However, we noted
other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to the management of Storey
County, Nevada , in a separate letter dated October 22,2010.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Storey County, Nevada’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of it’s compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. However, we
noted certain matters that we reported to management of Storey County, Nevada, in a separate letter dated October 22,
2010.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, Board of County
Commissioners and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

David A. Pringle, CPA, LTD
Certified Public Accountant

October 22, 2010
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AUDITORS REPORT ON PRIOR YEAR’S RECOMMENDATIONS

To The Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada

We have reviewed the status of our recommendations included in last year’s audit report dated December 2, 2009. This
review indicated:

1. Expenditures continued to exceed appropriatiors in two special revenue fhnds.

2. The assignment of account numbers and fund numbers to expenditures was greatly improved.

3. The payback fund (TM Payback) was funded and the continuous source of funding for required future
payback was established.

4. The process of “netting” revenue and expenditures has been corrected.

-

David A. Pringle, CPA, LTD.
Certified Public Accountant

October 22, 2010
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AUDITORS REPORT ON CURRENT YEAR’S RECOMMENDATIONS

To the Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada

We have audited the financial statentnts of Storey County, Nevada for the year ended June 30, 2010, and have
issued our report thereon dated October 22, 2010. As part of our audit, we made a study and evaluation of the
County’s system of internal accounting control to the extent we considered necessary solely to determine the nature,
timing and extent of our auditing procedures. Our study and evaluation was more limited than would be necessary to
express an opinion on the system of internal accounting control taken as a whole, and we do not express such an
opinion.

However during our audit we became aware of certain matters that, while not involving material weaknesses in
internal accounting control, are opportunities for increasing controls and operating efficiency. This letter does not
affect our report dated October 22, 2010, on the financial statennts of Storey County, Nevada.

Current Years Audit Recommendations

1. Expenditures must be monitored to prevent exceeding the amounts budgeted, as expenditures exceeded
budget in three Special Revenue Funds and the Virginia-Divide Sewer District Fund.

2. Continued care should be taken in the assignment of funds and account numbers prior to recording the
liabilities inthe accounting records. Certain expenditures appear to be more correctly changed to the
special revenue funds rather than the general fund. If it is desired that the expenses are paid ivith the
general fund monies, a transfer to the special revenue fund should be made, along with an augmentation
of the budget, so that the expenses are properly reflected in the appropriate funds.

The status of the above recommendations must be reviewed during your next audit engagement. We have already
discussed these recommendations with the County Comptroller, and will be pleased to discuss them in further detail
at your convenience.

-

David A. Pringle, CPA, LTD
Certified Public Accountants

October 22, 2010
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